

## MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING

**HELD ON** 

## **TUESDAY 30 APRIL 2019**

AT 5.30PM

IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS
CIVIC CENTRE
MANDURAH TERRACE MANDURAH

#### PRESENT:

R WILLIAMS	
C KNIGHT [DEPUTY MAYOR]	, 'OKTH WARD
R WORTLEY	NCRTH WARD
P JACKSON	NORTH WARD
DLEE	EAST WARD
L RODGERS	EAST WARD
F RIEBELING	COASTAL WARD
T JONES	COASTAL WARD
M DARCY	COASTAL WARD
DSC'101. AC YER	TOWN WARD
P ROGERS	TOWN WARD
MRC GERS	TOWN WARD
	C KNIGHT [DEPUTY MAYC?] R WORTLEY P JACKSON D LEE L RODGERS F RIEBELING T JONES M DARCY D SC'101. ACHER P ROGERS

MR	M NEWMAN	CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
MR	A CLAYDON	DIRECTOR WORKS & SERVICES
MR	T FREE	DIRECTOR SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES
MR	<b>G DAVIES</b>	EXECUTIVE MANAGER STRATEGY & BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
MR	B INGLE	MANAGER STATUTORY SERVICES
MRS	L SLAYFORD	MINUTE OFFICER

## OPENING OF MEETING AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF VISITORS [AGENDA ITEM 1]

The Mayor declared the meeting open at 5.31pm. Attendance by Peel Chamber of Commerce and Industry representatives Pauline Bright and Jane Jamieson was acknowledged.

### **ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY [AGENDA ITEM 2]**

Mayor Williams acknowledged that the meeting was being held on the traditional land of the Bindjareb people, and paid his respect to their Elders past and present.

## **APOLOGIES [AGENDA ITEM 3]**

Councillor Shane Jones.

### **DISCLAIMER [AGENDA ITEM 4]**

The Mayor advised that the purpose of this Council Meeting is to discuss and, where possible, make resolutions about items appearing on the agenda. Whilst Council has the power to resolve such items and may in fact, appear to have done so at the meeting, no person should rely on or act on the basis of such decision or on any advice or information provided by a Member or Officer, or on the content of any discussion occurring, uring the course of the meeting. Persons should be aware that the provisions of the Local Covernment Act 1995 (Section 5.25(e)) and Council's Consolidated Local Laws (Society 4.86) establish procedures for revocation or recision of a Council decision. No person should rely on the decisions made by Council until formal advice of the Council decision is received by that person.

The City of Mandurah expressly disclaims liability for any loc or damage suffered by any person as a result of relying on or acting on the basic of any resolution of Council, or any advice or information provided by a Member or officer, or the content of any discussion occurring, during the course of the Council menting

#### ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS TA. C.: ON NOTICE [AGENDA ITEM 5]

Officers provided response to que stions taken on notice at the Council meeting held on Tuesday, 26 March 2019.

#### G.3/3/19 R C ENT: N ERRIVALE STREET ROADWORKS

Mr Gent asked when he would receive the name of the Elected Member who attended a meeting with City officers (Refer previous question submitted), and also if the former Corporate Lawyer had provided information to the Chief Executive Officer regarding boxing out levels and what the Chief Executive Officer was doing in regard to those levels.

#### Response:

- 1. This question has been answered in a letter dated 30 January 2019. The Elected Member is referred to as a "Councillor" in a letter from the independent surveyor. The City's records do not identify a specific person.
- 2. As previously notified in the same letter, Merrivale Street is now at its previous level. The issue of boxing out does not arise.

### PUBLIC QUESTION TIME [AGENDA ITEM 6] [OPENED AT 5.32PM CLOSED AT 5.34PM]

#### G.1/4/19 MR R GENT: COUNCIL MINUTES 26 MARCH 2019

- Mr Gent directed his questions to the Mayor requesting that the Minutes of 26 March, 2019 not be approved as, in his view, details were omitted.
- Mr Gent questioned if the Minute Officer could be directed to surrender the draft meeting minutes, unchanged, to himself and that the March 26, 2019 minutes not be approved until they were reviewed.
- 3. Mr Gent spoke of photos he had received in the mail anonymously some time ago showing Councillors, officers and himself at a meeting and asked why they had been sent to him.

#### Response:

- 1. Mayor Williams advised that approval of the minutes was a collective decision of Council and not his sole responsibility. Council would consider the minutes and Mr Gent's comments accordingly.
- Refer Minute G.6/4/19.
- 3. The Chief Executive Officer advised he was unaware who or why the photos were sent. This question was taken on notice for the Chief Executive Officer to review.

#### G.2/4/19 MR M O'BRIAN: HOUSEBOAT: //G.T.YS FORESHORE

Mr O'Brian submitted the following questions to Council.

- 1. Has the letter that was being pre, are 1 by the Legal department been sent to the owner of the houseboat, and on wind date?
- 2. What deadline has been set or the houseboat to be removed?
- 3. As the housebor cowner at ended both the relevant Council meetings on 12 and 26 February, he is vell aware that, without specific permission to the contrary, there is a four hour time ling for any vessel to moor at a Council facility. How many infringement notices have been issued since Council voted 10/2 for this item G.24/2/19 two months ago?
- 4. Are there any further developments in this matter that are delaying the removal of the houseboat?

#### Response:

The Chief Executive Officer advised this issue was a current legal matter and it was not appropriate to discuss the legal process in a public meeting. The Chief Executive Officer further advised he would correspond with Mr O'Brian and provide the information requested.

#### PUBLIC STATEMENT TIME [AGENDA ITEM 7]

Nil.

### **LEAVE OF ABSENCE REQUESTS [AGENDA ITEM 8]**

G.3/4/19

LEAVE OF ABSENCE: COUNCILLOR LYNN RODGERS - 9 - 31 MAY, 2019

INCLUSIVE

MOTION:

F Riebeling / Matt Rogers

That leave of absence be granted to Councillor Lynn Rodgers from 9 – 31 May, 2019 inclusive.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0

G.4/4/19

LEAVE OF ABSENCE: COUNCILLOR WORTLEY - 17 JUNE TO 22 JULY,

2019 INCLUSIVE

MOTION:

D Lee / D Schumacher

That leave of absence be granted to Councillor Wortley from 1 Jun. to 22 July, 2019 inclusive.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0

PETITIONS [AGENDA ITEM 9]

Nil.

PRESENTATIONS [AGENDA IT. ... 10]

Nil.

DEPUTATIONS [AGE. 'DA ITEM 11]

G.5/4/19

M BLAIR: MADORA BAY PUMP TRACK

Mrs Blair withdrew her request to make a deputation as there was no opposition to the recommendation. Mrs Blair congratulated Council on its proactive approach in accepting the report recommendation and providing an activity space in Madora Bay.

#### **CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES [AGENDA ITEM 12]**

G.6/4/19

**CONFIRMATION OF COUNCIL MINUTES: TUESDAY 26 MARCH 2019** 

Councillor Lee moved the motion to accept the minutes which was seconded by Hon. Councillor Riebeling.

Councillors requested clarification in regard to the public question raised regarding content that may not have been included in the minutes. The Chief Executive Officer advised that meeting minutes where not verbatim and preamble leading up to a question is considered a public statement so therefore not included under the agenda item of Public Question Time. Further clarification concerning the public question time request for draft minutes was provided by the Chief Executive Officer advising that City officers were dealing with this request via the Freedom of Information process.

MOTION:

D Lee / F Riebeling

That the Minutes of Council Meeting held on Tuesday, 26 March 2019 be confirmed.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0

### G.7/4/19 ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE PRESIDING MEMBER [AGENDA ITEM 13]

- Councillor Wortley attended Ella's House Community Fete on 6 April which he advised
  was a remarkable facility in Greenfields that offered support survices for persons suffering
  ailments such as Alzheimer's Disease.
- Councillor Jackson recounted the Blessing of the Road's 2019 conducted at Christ's Church Anglican parish of Mandurah on 14 April.
- Councillor Peter Rogers informed Council of the . ve tegories open to West Australian entrants in the Mandurah Portrait and La .dsc .pe . wards event which was held on 27 April. Artworks entered could be viewed at the Mandurah Performing Arts Centre at present.
- Deputy Mayor Councillor Knight or gratulated students involved in the Junior Council elections held on April 4 which she attended along with Councillor Lee and Mayor Williams. Lilly Richards was elected June. The yor with Penelope Stone as Deputy Mayor.
- ANZAC Day services reld at lawesville and Mandurah were acknowledged by the Mayor.
   All services were we attended with approximately 8,000 persons across the District attending throughout the day.
- The Mayor update the meeting to Minister Tinley's visit on 13 April for the launch of WA Youth Week.
- Mayor Williams recognised the April 2019 Local Legend, Dee Freitag, who is CEO and founder of Halo Team Inc. established in 2014. Halo Team is a local charitable organisation offering a range of services including food, clothing, household items, furniture, transitional accommodation, outreach support, blankets, hygiene and chemo care packs to persons within the Peel Region.

### G.8/4/19 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS [AGENDA ITEM 14]

- Councillor Lynn Rodgers declared a financial interest in Minute G.24/4/19 Demolition:
  Lot 503 (60) Peel Street, Mandurah due to her position as Chief Executive Officer at
  WestAus Crisis and Welfare Services who current lease the property being discussed.
  Councillor Lynn Rodgers would not be participating in discussion or voting on this
  item.
- Councillor Tahlia Jones declared an impartiality interest in Minute G.12/4/19 Murrayfield Airport Redevelopment: Contributions Toward Business Case due to her
  employment with Peel Development Commission who are a key partner and funding
  provider for the business case pertaining to this item. Councillor Tahlia Jones would not
  be participating in discussion or voting on this item if it was to be withdrawn for
  discussion.

### **QUESTIONS FROM ELECTED MEMBERS [AGENDA ITEM 15]**

Questions of which due notice has been given

## G.9/4/19 HON COUNCILLOR RIEBELING: STAFFING LF / ELS

1 What was the FTE level of the City in the financial year 2017/18? What is the FTE level of the City in the 2018/19 financial year? What is the City in the 2018/19 financial year? What is the FTE levels as at 4 April 2019?

Response:

505.0	
517.3	
507.5	

- 2 How many City employees an employed:
  - 2.1 Part Time;
  - 2.2 Full Time:
  - 2.3 Casual?

Response:

TOOPOHOO.		
Part Time	199	
Full Time	371	
Casual	107	

For the periods set out in question 1, how many FTE's are allocated to the Mandurah Aquatic and Recreation Centre and the Halls Head Recreation Centre?

Response:

riooponioo.	
2017/18	67.20
2018/19	66.7
4th April	65.6

- For the periods set out in questing 1, how are the staffing levels made up at the Mandurah Aquatic and Recreation Centre, in terms of:
  - 4.1 Part Time;
  - 4.2 Full Time;
  - 4.3 Casual?

#### Response:

	Full Time	Part Time	Casual
2017/18 FTE	10.8	32.8	23.6
2018/19 FTE	10	30	26.7
4 April 2019	7.2	41.7	16.7

What is the percentage of the City's budget that is currently paid in wages and allowances?

#### Response:

28% of the City's total expenditure

Given the expansion of FTE's across the City, what (if any) controls are in place to review the expansion?

#### Response:

The City has controls over new FTE's in each budget period. Requests for any new FTE's are accompanied with a business case explaining the reed as part of the draft budget process and are presented to Executive in the first in ance to reconsideration. The final list is included as part of the budget for Council

For the MARC, controls are put in place through the pidgeted salaried figures, however, the centre is required to have a certain level of flexibility regarding FTE's within that budget to maintain operations of the centre. Received: Centres have recently implemented rostering software and will be about to losely track labour costs.

Questions of which notice has not begui give

Nil.

BUSINESS LEFT OVER FI OM PI EVIOUS MEETING JAGENDA ITEM 16]

Nil.

#### RECOMMENDATIONS OF COMMITTEES [AGENDA ITEM 17]

NOTE: Council adopted en bloc (moved by Councillor Schumacher and seconded by Councillor Tahlia Jones), the recommendation of the Strategy Committee meeting of Tuesday, 9 April 2019.

G.10/4/19 MANDURAH MATTERS STRATEGY AND OUTCOMES (REPORT 1) (S.3/4/19)

At the Council Meeting on the 24 July 2018, Mayor Rhys Williams proposed a notice of motion to:

 establish a framework for facilitating a City-wide community engagement campaign aimed at establishing a clear, citizen-led vision for Mandurah's future;

- as part of the campaign, convene the Future of Mandurah Summit for the purpose of engaging closely with local stakeholders and community members to consider priorities for the future, and to define the desired 'story' for Mandurah in the decades ahead;
- engage closely with Elected Members on the design and implementation of the campaign;
- use the findings of this process as a foundation for reviewing the City of Mandurah Strategic Community Plan, and associated strategic priorities.

This resulted in the establishment of the 'Mandurah Matters' project, an extensive community engagement process which commenced in October 2018 and culminated in a one-day summit held on the 23 February 2019. Throughout the campaign, the community has embraced the opportunity to be involved in leading the development of a future vision for Mandurah and taken ownership of the process.

Council is requested to note the progress of the Mandurah Matters campaign to date, acknowledge and celebrate the valuable contribution that the Community has played in the process and note the next steps in finalising the vision. Council is also asked to note that the Mandurah Matters project has constituted a major review of the City's Strategic Community Plan approve the revised timeline.

MOTION:

D Schumacher / Tahlia Jones

#### **That Council:**

- 1. Notes the progress of the Mandurah Ma ters ampaign to date and the outcomes as detailed in the Summit Revert.
- 2. Acknowledges and celebrate the valuable contribution that the community has played in the process and to ownership they have taken in leading Mandurah's future vision.
- 3. Notes that the next step in the process is to finalise the community's vision for Mandurah and that a place is for achieving this is being developed.
- 4. Notes that the Can 'ur h Matters project constituted a major review of the City's Strategic Community Plan which was not scheduled for a major review until 2021.
- 5. Approves the revised timeline for the Strategic Community Plan (August December 2017) major review.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0 (This item was adopted en bloc)

NOTE: Council adopted en bloc (moved by Councillor Schumacher and seconded by Councillor Tahlia Jones), the recommendations of the Committee of Council meeting of Tuesday, 16 April 2019 with the exception of items CC.4/4/19, CC.6/4/19, CC.10/4/19 and CC.17/4/19 which was dealt with separately.

## G.11/4/19 TRADING PERMIT GUIDELINES - UPDATE AND REVIEW (NL) (CC.4/4/19)

This report seeks to review the effectiveness of the Trading Permits Guidelines adopted in February 2018, and provide recommendations for changes to improve customer service and reduce red tape.

Over the past 12 month period, the City has received no complaints in relation to commercial and aquatic operators' and one complaint in relation to mobile food vendors, with the submitter seeking a time limit restriction of 2 hours in any one location for mobile traders.

As a part of this review, officers have:

- reconsidered the stated objectives of the document;
- considered possible modifications to the regulatory provisions relating to the locations of trade and the length of time spent in any one trading location;
- considered the inclusion of provisions relating to semi-permanent space activation and markets:
- · the initiation of the 'expression of interest' process for key waterfront locations; and
- · undertaken a review of the fee structure.

Council is recommended to support the proposed modifications to the state d objectives of the Trading Permits Guidelines, in addition to the modifications to the Oche Jule of Fees and Charges for 2019/2020.

In March 2019, Council resolved to defer the review of the Taoing Permit Guidelines to April 2019 to ensure that all the impacts of the changes are changitally identified and understood by Council before making a decision.

Additional information has been included within this report, relating to the following:

- Restricting trading commencement + 'nes'
- Duration of trading hour restrictions:
- Appropriateness of 400m trading dis and;
- Appropriateness of Mandurah Perrace, Silver Sands Reserve trading location;
- Set-up time requirements for n. ob.'s traders;
- Monetary and staff costs in amending commencement trading times from 7am to 9am.

Additions from the March 2019 report have been identified as italicised text.

MOTION:

R Wortiey / F Riebeling

#### That Council:

- Maintains the current Trading Permit Guidelines as an agreed position on how traders may operate from Council land, subject to the following modifications:
  - (a) Modify Section 1.1 of the Trading Permit Guidelines to read
    - (a) "Encourage the use of parks and reserves by commercial and aquatic operators and mobile traders, as a means of enhancing the vibrancy and community activity that flows from this activation of our public spaces, whilst managing the competing needs and interests of pedestrians, consumers and local business proprietors;

- (b) To facilitate enjoyable, interesting, unique and convenient leisure and recreational options for residents, families and other members of the community to experience in their local area;
- (c) Encourage and provide entrepreneurial, place-making and tourism opportunities that contribute to the well-being of residents, to the overall experience of visitors to Mandurah and to the growth of small businesses;
- (d) Provide guidelines and assessment criteria for the consistent decision making of applications for trading permits applications on public land."
- (b) Approves modifications that identify the semi-permanent/pop-up style activities from the approved City Centre Waterfront Precinct Concept Plans are included in the 'City Centre Waterfront Trading Locations' and are subject to the expression of interest process outlined in Section 2.8 of the Guidelines.
- 2. Notes the introduction of a quarterly fee of \$650 for mobile traders to the Schedule of Fees and Charges for 2019/2020 and an wedate to the fee structure within the guidelines;
- 3. Notes the introduction of a monthly fee of \$100 for commercial and aquatic operators to the Schedule of Fees and Charges is r 2 \frac{1}{3}/2020 and an update to the fee structure within the guidelines.

CARRIED:

11/1

FOR:

Mayor Williams, Councillors Tahi, Jones, Matt Rogers, P Jackson, Peter

Rogers, C Knight, R Wortley, Lynn Jodgers, M Darcy, D Le and Hon.

Councillor Riebeling

AGAINST:

Councillor Schumacher

## G.12/4/19 MURRAY FIELD AIRPORT REDEVELOPMENT: CONTRIBUTIONS TOWARD BUSINES 3 CAS 2 (TB) (CC.5/4/19)

During discussions hold between the City of Mandurah and Shire of Murray Chief Executive Officers in February 2019. The Shire of Murray advised that it was preparing a business case on the proposed redevelopment of Murrayfield Airport, located approximately 15km north of Pinjarra. Funding of \$100,000 will be allocated for the business case, with \$25,000 to be provided by the PDC, \$25,000 by Brooks Hire Service, \$20,000 by the Shire of Murray and \$10,000 by the Royal Aero Club of WA. The Shire of Murray requested the City of Mandurah to contribute the final \$20,000 towards the business case.

Council is therefore requested to approve the allocation of \$20,000 from the Chief Executive Officer's Budget towards a business case for proposed redevelopment of Murrayfield Airport

#### Report Recommendation

That Council approves the allocation of \$20,000 from the Chief Executive Officer's budget towards a business case for the proposed redevelopment of Murrayfield Airport.

MOTION:

D Schumacher / Tahlia Jones

That Council defer consideration of the Murrayfield Airport Redevelopment: Contributions Toward Business Case to the Council meeting in May with an Elected Member briefing to be held prior to consideration of the item.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0 (This item was adopted en bloc)

### G.13/4/19 CODE OF CONDUCT AMENDMENTS (DP) (CC.6/4/19)

The City has three Codes of Conduct covering Elected Members, Committee Members and Employees. Each of these has a procedure for dealing with complaints which require a submission to be made to the Corporate Lawyer. At the moment, this position is not currently within the organisation structure. It is necessary to amend each of the Codes to provide for an alternative.

Council is requested to approve an interim amendment to each of the Cours to provide for complaints to be made to the Director Corporate Services.

Councillor Peter Rogers moved the recommendation contained within the additional information which was seconded by Councillor Tahlia Jone's Cicrification was requested as to whether people whom a complaint was made against would be advised of who the complainant was. The Chief Executive Officer advised that as per due process this information would be provided.

MOTION:

Peter Rogers / Tahlia Jones

That Council approves the replaceme. to Section 4.3 of the Codes of Conduct for Elected Members, Committee Members, and Employees with the following:

- 4.3 Procedure for dealing with complaint
- (1) Where a comple 'ed complaint form is received by the Director Corporate Services the man will be notified to the CEO and/or the Mayor.
- (2) The CEO a. 4/or Mayor will be responsible for the investigation of allegations of breaches of the Code and must either:
  - (a) where deemed possible and appropriate by the CEO and/or Mayor try and resolve the issue through discussions with the parties;
  - (b) investigate the alleged breach; or
  - (c) engage an independent person to investigate the allegation, noting that where the alleged breach involves the Mayor and/or CEO, an independent investigator will be required.
- (3) Any investigation will follow the rules of procedural fairness. The investigator must:
  - (a) inform the person/s against whose interests a decision may be made of any allegations against them and the substance of any adverse comment in respect of them;
  - (b) provide the person/s with a reasonable opportunity to put their case;

- (c) hear all parties to a matter and consider submissions;
- (d) make reasonable enquiries before making a decision; and
- (e) ensure that no person is involved in enquiries in which they have a direct interest.
- (4) Wherever reasonably practical parties will meet with the intent of resolving the issue.
- (5) Wherever reasonably practical investigations will be kept confidential.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0

## G.14/4/19 COMMERCIAL SPONSORSHIP MERLIN STREET PAVILION (WM) (CC.7/4/19)

The City of Mandurah's "Promotions and Advertising Policy" (POL-CMR 04) is designed to manage the use of the City's sport and recreation facilities for advertising purposes with all applications for external corporate signage and venue naming rights to be referred to Council for consideration.

The Halls Head Football Club is a long term seasonal hirer of the Mirclin Screet Reserve and Pavilion in Halls Head. In 2013, the Club approached the Ciry with a proposal to extend the existing facility and construct a function / social space at their cost. Since the completion of the project, the Club has attracted a couple of significant corporate consors including Hardcourts Mandurah and Elite Air-Conditioning.

This year the Club has used an innovative method to replace the naming rights sponsor for the venue. The club has sold 60 raffle tickets at \$250 .otaning \$15,000. Each ticket entitled the business an entry into the draw to become the nailing rights sponsor for 12 months.

Spartan Security and Data were the win. • s of the raffle and earned the right to become the Club's naming rights partner in 2019.

Whilst the City is supportive of the Club's ability to attract valuable sponsorship dollars, formal approval is required. The City has received the Club's formal application and is now seeking approval from Council. Provisional approval has been granted to the Club in order to service their sponsor from the commencement of the 2019 season (commencing on 6 April).

Council is requested to provide approval for the Halls Head Football Club to enter into a corporate sponsorship arrangement with Spartan Security and Data for the Merlin Street Pavilion; approve the Club to advertise the reserve and pavilion as "Spartan Stadium" for promotional purposes and note the additional conditions that will be associated with this approval.

MOTION:

D Schumacher / Tahlia Jones

#### That Council:

- Approve the Halls Head Football Club to enter into a corporate sponsorship arrangement with Spartan Security and Data for the Merlin Street Pavilion.
- 2. Approve the Halls Head Football Club to advertise the reserve and pavilion as "Spartan Stadium" for promotional purposes.
- 3. Note the additional conditions that will be associated with this approval:

- 3.1 Only one external facing sign on the northern side of the pavilion and internal facing signage will be permitted.
- 3.2 The Halls Head Football Club will be permitted to advertise the reserve and pavilion as "Spartan Stadium" for Club promotional purposes only. The City will continue to refer to the facility as the Merlin Street Pavilion / Reserve and will book and hire the facilities under this title.
- 3.3 The seasonal hirer of the Merlin Street Pavilion will be given priority access to signage space. If a commercial sponsorship or naming rights proposal is received by another regular hirer (i.e. Peel Diamond Sports), the Halls Head Football Club will only be permitted to erect the approved signage for the duration of their sports season (1 April 1 October each year).
- 3.4 The Halls Head Football Club is to inform the City of Mandurah in February each year of any changes to the Sponsorship agreement, including changes to sponsor details and signage.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0 (This item was adopted en bloc)

## G.15/4/19 FALCON RESERVE ACTIVATION PLAN (J. Y) (CC.8/4/19)

The City is currently undertaking a number of project at Nalcon Reserve that considers the provision of appropriate changing facilities (including and growth of female sports participation), the provision of netball facilities for the Peel Notball and Football League and a timely upgrade to the Falcon Skate and BMX Park. As a result, the City has taken the opportunity to review the Reserve in its entirety with the intent of evitables and activate the site.

Due to the size, location and function of indicate the site is largely focused around creating structures already insitu, planning to activate the site is largely focused around creating linkages between current infrastructure, the provision of additional passive recreation opportunities such as playgrounds and shelters, improving traffic movements in and around the facilities and implementing attacegies that may increase a sense of security process at the reserve.

Stage 1 of the Community Engagement process was carried out in April 2018. This included consultation with resident sports clubs of Falcon Reserve and the regular hirers of the Falcon Pavilion of which the City received very positive feedback on the objectives of the plan and its approach.

In May 2018 the City sought support from Council to carry out wider community engagement for the Falcon Reserve Activation Plan and was given approval to do so with an additional request to carry out focused workshops for the design of the Falcon Skate Park Upgrade.

Between November 2018 and February 2019 the City delivered a comprehensive engagement program to inform the design of the Falcon Skate Park Upgrade. Skate Sculpture were engaged by the City to facilitate the design sessions and deliver both the conceptual and detailed plans for the upgrade.

Simultaneously, the City provided further opportunity for the wider community to provide feedback into the draft Falcon Reserve Activation Plan which once again received a very positive response from the community.

The City now seek Council endorsement of the final Falcon Reserve Activation Plan and the Falcon Skate Park Concept Plan.

MOTION:

D Schumacher / Tahlia Jones

#### That Council:

- Note the engagement process carried out for the Falcon Reserve Activation
  Plan.
- 2. Endorse the Falcon Reserve Activation Plan as a guiding document to the delivery of capital upgrades at Falcon Reserve.
- 3. Endorse the concept plan for the Falcon Skate Park upgrade.
- 4. Note the 2019/20 draft capital budget includes a request 1 r \$620,000 for the delivery of the Falcon Skate Park Upgrade and clage 1 of the district play space.
- 5. Note future stages of the Falcon Reserve A vival Plan implementation will be put forward for consideration as part of the vity's annual budget process.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0 (This item was adopted en bloc)

## G.16/4/19 MADORA BAY PUM.? Tr ACK (HM/PM) (CC.9/4/19)

The City of Mandurah is composited to creating an active and vibrant city through providing a choice of leisure activities t' at congibute to the health and wellbeing of the community. In 2017, the City of Mandurah received funding from the State Government to install a pump track at Coote Reserve, Madora day.

In March 2018, City of part undertook a high level consultation process in conjunction with the Madora Bay Community Association in regards to the proposed installation of a pump track at Coote Reserve. Whilst the feedback indicated a level of support for the project, there was some negative feedback regarding the Coote Reserve site, in particular for neighbouring residents.

In February 2019, City officers completed a comprehensive community engagement process which included seeking feedback on the original location at Coote Reserve plus the option of two other potential locations: Lord Hobart Drive Reserve and McLennan Reserve.

Council is requested to endorse the community engagement process undertaken identifying McLennan Park as the preferred location for the pump track and approve installation at the site.

MOTION:

D Schumacher / Tahlia Jones

#### That Council:

- Acknowledge the community consultation process and the results used to determine the preferred pump track location.
- Approve the installation of the pump track at McLennan Reserve, Madora Bay.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0 (This item was adopted en bloc)

## G.17/4/19 SMART STREET UPGRADE – FINAL APPROVAL OF CONCEPT PLAN (RB) (CC.10/4/19)

Guided by direction from the Smart Street Working Group (established in October 2017) and feedback from stakeholders and the Community on three advertises options, a final concept design to facilitate the upgrade of Smart Street has been prepared.

In doing so, however, it should be acknowledged that the destrip and upgrade is one part of ensuring that Smart Street is seen as a 'successful place'. The part of successful place, the vehicle or pedestrian options are considered secondary concerns when considering:

- Quality of the landscape (infrastructure) treatmen
- Movement of people (in vehicles, by foot or bicycle),
- Tenant mix and quality of storefronts; and
- Activity and activation.

A complete infrastructure upgrade is proposed with the primary focus being to create an adaptable, pedestrian focused, according to reet.

Council is requested to ador t the Smart Street Precinct Upgrade Concept (Final), Drawing LAN0356-1819-CO – 1/B Fe > 2019 and contribute \$2.5 million capital funding over the next two financial years to implement the plan proposals.

MOTION:

D Sch. ma oner / F Riebeling

#### That Council:

 Adopts the following Concept Plan for the upgrade of Smart Street Precincts as the basis of proceeding with detail design and construction documentation:

LAN0356--1819-CO – 1/B Feb 2019 - Smart Street Precinct Upgrade Concept (Final).

- 2. Acknowledges that \$1.5 million is likely to be required in the 2019-20 budget and \$1 million in the 2020-21 budget to implement the proposed upgrade.
- 3. Thank working group members for their contribution.
- 4. Communicate the final concept to the community.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0

# G.18/4/19 PROPOSED MODIFICATIONS TO LOCAL PLANNING SCHEME NO.12 AND LOCAL PLANNING STRATEGY (AH) (CC.11/4/19)

In July 2013, Council resolved to prepare a new local planning scheme and in March 2014 Council adopted a draft Scheme (under the heading 'Mandurah Planning Scheme').

The following year, the *Planning and Development (Local Planning Scheme) Regulations 2015 ('LPS Regulations')* were prepared, advertised and gazetted and became operative in October 2015. The LPS Regulations resulted in significant changes to the format and operation of local planning schemes requiring the draft Scheme to be rewritten and reformatted.

The revised format Scheme, entitled *City of Mandurah Local Planning Scheme No 12* ('Scheme 12') was adopted by Council at its meeting of 24 January 2017.

In September 2018, the City received advice that the Commission had determined the Scheme was suitable to be advertised in accordance with the Regulations subject to modifications. However, prior to advertising, the documents were required to be referred to the Environmental Protection (EPA) for consideration pursuant to Section 82 of the Planning and Development Act 2005 ('P&D Act').

Scheme 12 was subsequently forwarded to the EPA. Additional information was sought by the EPA and a meeting was held to discuss the key concerns of the FPA vital specific reference to:

- The zoning change proposed for Lot 10 Pinjarra ( ad, Greenfields from 'Tourist' and 'Rural' to 'Urban Development'.
- Lots 2 Old Coast Road and Lots 20 and 21 Zsturry Road, Bouvard;
- The zoning change of a number of lots with a Southern Rural Structure Plan area from 'Rural' to 'Rural Residential'.

Officers of the EPA have indicated that the changes in zoning proposed may result in a requirement for a formal environmental assessment of Scheme 12 in its entirety in order for the environmental implications of all larges to be explored in more detail. This could cause significant delays to the large.

The zoning changes proposed relate to a small number of properties, and rather than further delay the progress of the entirety of Scheme 12, it is proposed to amend Scheme 12 to address the concerns of the EPA. The appropriateness of the zoning of the subject properties could then be further explained as a separate process.

It is therefore recommended that the proposed changes be adopted by Council.

MOTION:

D Schumacher / Tahlia Jones

#### That:

1. In accordance with Section 72 of the Planning and Development Act 2005 and Regulation 21(1) of the Planning and Development (Local Planning Scheme) Regulations 2015, Council adopts the modified draft City of Mandurah Local Planning Scheme No 12 Scheme (Scheme Text and Scheme Maps dated January 2019), and forward to the Western Australian Planning Commission seeking consent to the advertise the Scheme noting the following modifications from the Scheme Text and Scheme Maps dated January 2017:

- (a) The zoning Lot 10 Pinjarra Road, Greenfields being modified from 'Urban Development' to 'Tourist' and 'Rural' consistent with the zoning under Town Planning Scheme No. 3;
- (b) The zoning of the following sites being modified from Rural Residential and Rural Smallholdings to Rural consistent with the zoning under Town Planning Scheme No. 3:
  - Lot 74 Old Coast Road, Bouvard;
  - Lot 20 Dalton Road, Herron;
  - Lot 7 Dalton Road, Herron;
  - Lot 21 Southern Estuary Road, Herron; and
  - Lot 101 Southern Estuary Road, Herron.
- In accordance with Section 81 of the Planning and Development Act 2005, the modified draft City of Mandurah Local Planning Scheme No 12 be forwarded to the Environmental Protection Authority for its assessment under the provisions of the Environmental Protection Act 1986.
- 3. Council modifies the draft Local Planning Strategy (\*ated 3 'ne 2018) by highlighting the requirement for any significant proposal or the following sites to be referred to the Environmental Protection Automatic under \$38 of the Environmental Protection Act 1986 under Section 2.3 (Finvironment and Biodiversity):
  - (a) Lot 10 Pinjarra Road, Greenfields: and
  - (b) the 'Panorama; Development Lite Doal d at Lots 20 and 21 Estuary Road Dawesville and Lot 2 Old Coal Floau, Bouvard.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0 (This item was adopted en bloc)

#### G.19/4/19 BUSHFIRE PREV. Ni ION AND CONTROL (BI) (CC.12/4/19)

This report provides in formation as requested by a Notice of Motion at the Council Meeting of 26 February relating to the C y's application of its Bushfire Prevention and Control Policy. The information reviews concelled cerates and opportunities to improve voluntary compliance in bushfire preparedness.

The report also undertakes a review of the content of the City's Bushfire Prevention and Control Policy. A number of changes have been recommended that will simplify requirements and reduce administration. The major recommended change requires properties that are under 4000m² to slash their properties rather than install firebreaks. The requirement to fully slash properties is currently in place for all properties under 2023m².

There are currently approximately 712 properties that are within the proposed new size range between 2023m² and 4000m². It is important to note that of these properties a small number will be required to undertake additional work.

The change aligns clearing and burning permit lot sizes and simplifies the requirement which assists communication with the community. The change would also remove the need for many firebreak variations that are currently issued. It is anticipated this will substantially reduce the administration burden for property owners and the City.

Other changes to the Policy are recommended relating to the recognition of Fire Management Plans within the Policy and altered terminology to assist in its implementation.

The purpose of this report is to request Councils endorsement of the modifications to Council Policy POL – EMS 01- Bushfire Prevention and Control.

MOTION:

D Schumacher / Tahlia Jones

#### That Council:

- Notes modifications to its Bushfire Act 1954 inspection regime to commence inspections in areas outside bushfire prone areas on 4 November with direct advisory correspondence provided to land owners at the time of inspection for properties that would likely be non-compliant.
- Approves modifications to Council Policy POL EMS 01- Bushfire
   Prevention and Control at noted within Attachment 1 which will be reflected
   in the City's 2019/20 Fire Notice.
- 3. That at the conclusion of the 2019/20 Bushfire sear on a roport be provided to Council detailing the rate of compliance achieved

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0 (This item was adopted en bloc)

# G.20/4/19 MURDOCH UNIVERSITY RE. FIRGI. PARTNERSHIP PROPOSAL – URBAN WILDFIRE MAN'AG TML NT (BBR) (CC.13/4/19)

The City of Mandurah has a long history of partnering with Murdoch University on environmental research. In 2016, the City entered into a three-year partnership with Murdoch to investigate how bandicoots concludes in a healthy urban bushland. This project, titled Backyard Bandicoots, concludes in a ctober 2019. It has been highly effective in both engaging the local community and increasing the City's knowledge and capacity to manage urban bushland.

To build on the success of the Backyard Bandicoots project, the City of Mandurah, the Department of Biodive. Sonservation and Attractions and Murdoch University have developed a new research project proposal, titled *Urban Wildlife Management: Manual Fuel Load Reduction for Biodiversity*.

This three-year project aims to address the important issue of managing fire risk in urban bushland in a way that has minimal impact on plants and wildlife. This also addresses an important problem for the City (and local government more broadly) because managing bushfire risk is fundamental for the protection of property and lives. The aim of this project is to identify how this work can be achieved in a way that also preserves the amenity and biodiversity values of these important remnants of native vegetation, which are vital habitat for urban wildlife. In addition, the project aims to involve the community in the mitigation of bushfire risk in urban bushland, therefore providing valuable educational and capacity building opportunities that can be utilised by landholders on private land. The objectives of this research partnership are to:

- Develop tools for protection of human lives and property in urban landscapes.
- Identify the impacts of manual fuel load reduction on biodiversity values such as tree health, soil condition, community perception and habitat for fauna.

 Address community values for urban bushland and increase manageability for emergency services.

The scientific, community and management outcomes of this project are:

- Greater confidence and engagement with wildfire management strategies.
- More urban residents engaged with conservation of their local urban bushland and urban wildlife.
- Long-term monitoring and conservation action.

Murdoch University have requested \$50,000 per annum for the three-year project, in addition to in-kind support in the form of officer time. The remainder of the project funding will be requested through an Australian Research Council Linkage Grant.

MOTION:

D Schumacher / Tahlia Jones

#### That Council:

- 1. Endorses the submission of a joint application for an Australian Research Council Linkage Project grant with Murdoch University
- 2. Supports the provision of \$50,000 per year for the engears lowerds the Urban Wildfire Management research partnership commercing in 2019/20, subject to the Council Budget approval and successful fustralian Research Council application.
- 3. Authorises the Chief Executive Officer to enco into a funding agreement with Murdoch University.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0 (This item was adopted en bloc)

#### G.21/4/19 EMBRACE ^ \_ PA E PROGRAM (TR/VA) (CC.14/4/19)

At the meeting in April 2018, Council resolved that the City considers an Embrace a Space Program to enable the community to adopt and participate in the management of public spaces in Mandurah. In resp. use to this, a community-led Embrace a Space Program has been developed which will operate alongside existing environmental volunteer groups and be supported through the Mandurah Environmental Volunteer Action Committee (MEVAC).

The Embrace a Space Program encourages community members to adopt and contribute to the management and activation of their favourite public space. It aims to strengthen community connections by creating a positive sense of ownership in spaces across Mandurah.

The Embrace a Space Program will be delivered by community and supported by City staff. The program will include a facilitation Toolkit and Activity Plan. The Toolkit will enable residents and the local community to facilitate a community workshop, to develop a vision for their space and to identify volunteer opportunities for their group. This will result in an Activity Plan being developed by group members and presented to relevant City officers, to enable collaboration between community and City operational activities.

Minor expenditure is expected and can be accommodated via the existing Volunteer Support program. If successful, this budget will continue to be used to support the Embrace a Space program in the future.

Council is being requested to acknowledge the Embrace A Space program and support the implementation of the Embrace A Space toolkit.

This item was considered via agenda item 18 Reports, refer minute G.29/4/19.

## G.22/4/19 VARIATION OF LEASE EMACC PTY LTD HANS CAFE (LP) (CC.15/4/19)

The directors of EMACC Pty Ltd (EMACC) have identifed a proposal to expand their business beyond its current operation as an Asian Cuisine trading as Hans Café (Hans).

EMACC request Council support to redevelop the upstairs function area of the building into a small bar, to be known as Brew Vino. As this new enterprise would be independent of the lower floor tenancy, a separate entrance and emergency exit are required.

In order to facilitate the conversion, stairs and a lift would need to be constructed outside the current lease area. The additional land required to rationalise a new lease boundary equates to an extra 73 square meters of City owned and Crown reserved land to the current lease area.

The head lease would require a variation to reflect the new lease footpoint, and a change of permitted use from Asian restaurant trading as Hans Café to a change and small bar, in order to provide additional flexibility regarding the use of the builting.

The sublease between EMACC and Hans will also need a criation allowing the relinquishment of the top storey of the building from heir sub-lease, together with Council support to allow a new sub-lease between EMACC and Brew Vino over the proposed new sublease area.

Council is requested to support the properal by EMACC together with the necessary variances to the lease and sub-leases which are all subject to the Minister for Lands approval.

MOTION:

D Schumach 1, hlia Jones

#### **That Council:**

- 1. Approve the acvertising of and if no submission received the disposal of a further 73 quare metres of lease area resulting in a total ground lease area of 473 square metres to EMACC Pty Ltd;
- 2. Approves a variation of the head lease for the permitted purpose to change to restaurant and small bar;
- 3. Approves the variation of the sublease between EMACC and TJD Sayoco Pty Ltd trading as Hans Café to reflect a reduction in their sublease area only;
- Approves a sublease between EMACC and Brew Vino over the top storey of the Hans Café building, stairs and lift areas with an expiry date on or before the 30 August 2026;
- Acknowledges all variations to agreements and the new sublease will be subject to the Minister for Lands approval;

Approves the Chief Executive Officer to finalise the variations of the head lease.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0 (This item was adopted en bloc)

## G.23/4/19 ROAD DEDICATION FAITH COURT, COODANUP (VK/LP) (CC.16/4/19)

Lot 66 Faith Court, Coodanup is currently identified as a public Right of Way (ROW) but is constructed as a road with under the care, control and maintenance of the City, to provide the road access to Lots 288-291.

The road was constructed in 2001, and it was officially named and the lots addressed as Faith Court, however, the process to formally dedicate the ROW as road was not undertaken.

The irregularity was identified when the Local Government Road Inventory Data Declaration process was undertaken in 2018, and the irregular land tenure caused officers to query whose responsibility it was to maintain the ROW.

As Faith Court is a fully constructed and operational public rord, which is currently being maintained by the City, the current land tenure is not correct and leads to confusion and risks such as funding being missed.

The Department of Planning, Lands & Heritage are about of dicate the ROW, subject to a Council resolution indemnifying the Minister and Long rma on that the ROW has been utilised by the public for over 10 years as a fully constructer, which it has.

Council is, therefore, requested to approve the a dication of the Public Right of Way being Lot 66 on Diagram 70947, as road, pursuan, to Section 56 of the Land Administration Act 1997 (LAA); and to indemnify the Minister fo. Lands against any claims for compensation in respect of the road dedication.

MOTION:

D Schuma ,ner / ah, a Jones

#### That Council:

1. Requests be Whister for Lands to approve the dedication as road of the Public Right of Way, being Lot 66 on Diagram 70947, pursuant to Section 56 of the Land Administration Act 1997.

Indemnifies the Minister for Lands against any claims for compensation in respect of the road dedication pursuant to Section 56 of the Land Administration Act 1997.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0 (This item was adopted en bloc)

Having declared an interest in the following item Councillor Lynn Rodgers left the Chamber at 5.58pm.

## G.24/4/19 DEMOLITION: LOT 503 (60) PEEL STREET, MANDURAH (LP/DC) (CC.17/4/19)

The current lease agreement with WestAus Crisis and Welfare Services Inc. (WestAus) over Lot 503 (60) Peel Street, Mandurah is due to expire on the 30 June 2019. The City has been advised by WestAus that they will be vacating at the end of the current lease term.

In 2016, Council resolved to dispose of the property at the end of this current term, as officers have raised concerns regarding the high risk associated with the ongoing management of residential housing.

The decline in the condition of the home, coupled with the City undertaking only basic repairs required as a residential landowner, the City would need to commit substantial funds to undertake the maintenance and repairs required to bring the property up to a residential rental standard, it is recommended that the demolition of buildings on site take place.

Council is requested to approve the demolition of the buildings on Lot 503 (60) Peel Street upon expiry of the current lease ending 30 June 2019 or at the time of the house being vacant by the existing tenant.

MOTION:

D Schumacher / D Lee

#### **That Council:**

- 1. Acknowledges that WestAus Crisis Carrant Violate Services Inc. will be vacating the property upon expiration of their current lease ending 30 June 2019.
- 2. Authorises the demolition of the buildings on Lot 503 (No. 60) Peel Street, Mandurah upon expiry of the current lease ending 30 June 2019.
- 3. Approves unbudgeted expen 'iture of up to \$30,000 for removal of buildings at 60 Peel Street.

CARRIED ABSOLUTELY: 11/

Councillor Lynn Rodge or urned to the Chamber at 5.59pm.

### **REPORTS [AGENDA ITEM 18]**

#### G.25/4/19 FINANCIAL REPORT MARCH 2019 (PB/DP) (REPORT 1)

The Financial Report for March 2019 together with associated commentaries, notes on investments, balance sheet information and the schedule of accounts are presented for Elected Members' consideration.

MOTION:

Tahlia Jones / F Riebeling

#### That Council:

1 Receives the Financial Report for March 2019.

2 Receives the Schedule of Accounts for the following amounts:

**Total Municipal Fund** 

\$ 11,046,139.10

Total Trust Fund

\$ 21,274.35 \$ 11,067,413.45

- 3 Approves unbudgeted expenditure of \$128,700 for Halls Head Parade Resurfacing No.38 to No.41:
  - Funded from Old Coast Road / Fistina Ramble resurfacing project \$128,700.
- 4 Approves unbudgeted expenditure of \$80,000 for Stewart Street Pump Upgrade:
  - Funded from Admiralty Crescent drainage project \$42,000;
  - Funded from Tindale Street drainage project \$38,000.
- 5 Approves unbudgeted expenditure of \$64,000 for Bortolo Reserve Sports Lighting:
  - Funded from Bortolo Oval Upgrade Sports Lighting \$16,000;
  - Funded Sports Lighting Replacement Program \$37,000;
  - Eastern Foreshore Seawall \$11,000.
- 6 Approves unbudgeted expenditure of \$65,000 for.
  - Self-bunding oil tank \$20,000;
  - Roadworks around the top shed \$30,000
  - Pedestrian paths and line markings \$15,0 ℃

To be funded from the Waste Oil Hards ... 4 \$ 77, 20

- 7 Approves unbudgeted expenditur a of 1,50,000 for Dredging Marina Entrance:
  - Funded from Dawesville Cot ST Side Fishing Platforms capital project \$20,000;
  - Funded from 2018/19 S and Typa, sing operating expenditure \$30,000.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0

#### G.26/4/19 NATIONAL GENZRAL ASSEMBLY 2019 CANBERRA (MN) (REPORT 2)

Council is requested to consider the attendance of an Elected Member(s) at the Australian Local Government Association, National General Assembly 2019 ("NGA19") to be held in Canberra during 16 – 19 June, 2019.

The theme for the NGA19 event is 'Future Focussed', celebrating the NGA's 25<sup>th</sup> anniversary and acknowledging that change is constant. The 2019 Regional Cooperation and Development Forum on 16 June will focus on *Boom or Bust: the Regional Yo-Yo Diet* and *Connected Communities*.

One nomination was received from Mayor Williams to attend the NGA 19.

MOTION:

Tahlia Jones / C Knight

That Council approves the attendance of Mayor Rhys Williams at the Australian Local Government Association's 2019 National General Assembly 2019 to be held in Canberra, 16 - 19 June 2019.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0

## G.27/4/19 JETTIES, WATERWAY AND MARINA AMENDMENT LOCAL LAW 2018 (SL) (REPORT 3)

Following the statutory advertising period, the Jetties, Waterways & Marina Amendment Local Law 2018 is ready for final adoption.

As a legal requirement, all local laws are to have a purpose and effect, the following is proposed for the Jetties, Waterways & Marina Amendment Local Law 2018:

PURPOSE:

to amend provisions within the City of Mandurah Jetties, Waterways and Marina

Local Law 2010.

EFFECT:

to ensure that the City of Mandurah Jetties, Waterways and Marina Local Law

2010 is as clear, concise and effective as possible.

Council is requested to adopt the proposed Jetties, Waterways & Marina Amendment Local Law 2018 in its final form.

MOTION:

C Knight / M Darcy

#### **That Council:**

- 1 Adopt the Jetties, Waterways and Marina Amondment ... cal Law 2018; and
- 2 Delete policy POL EVM 03 Live-On Boards Vandy ah Ocean Marina.

CARRIED ABSOLUTELY: 12/0

## G.28/4/19 WA POLICE MEMORANDUM CT UNDERSTANDING (TH) (REPORT 4)

The City and the WA Police Force previously established a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that outlines the policy and procedures regarding the provision of City owned Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) footage and monitoring equipment being used by Police at the Mandurah Police Station. This MOU was first executed in 2011 and has been reviewed annually by both parties.

The City and Police vark together on an ever increasing range of community issues and having an agreement that sets our clearer roles and responsibilities of each party assists in ensuring a collaborative approach. The existing agreement relates to just CCTV usage and it is imperative the existing MOU is broadened to include responses to wider operational issues and support. Police support an MOU and have provided the City with a template which they are also using with other Local Governments.

The objectives of an MOU are to provide clarity of the strategic priorities of each party relating to community safety, outlining roles and responsibilities and ensuring circumstances that information is shared is relevant and confidential. The report seeks Council's approval for entering into a new, broader MOU.

Elected Members acknowledged the benefits of the Memorandum and the efforts by both parties in establishing a strong and productive relationship which will assist businesses, the wider community and visitors to the area.

MOTION:

D Schumacher / Tahlia Jones

That Council approves the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Mandurah and the Western Australia Police Force and authorises finalising of the agreement to the Chief Executive Officer.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0

## G.29/4/19 EMBRACE A SPACE PROGRAM (VA/) (REPORT 5)

At the meeting in April 2018, Council resolved that the City considers an Embrace a Space Program to enable the community to adopt and participate in the management of public spaces in Mandurah. In response to this, a community-led Embrace a Space Program has been developed which will operate alongside existing environmental volunteer groups and be supported through the Mandurah Environmental Volunteer Action Committee (MEVAC).

The Embrace a Space Program encourages community members to adopt and contribute to the management and activation of their favourite public space. It air is to a rengthen community connections by creating a positive sense of ownership in space 3 across Mandurah.

The Embrace a Space Program will be delivered by community and supported by City staff. The program will include a facilitation Toolkit and Activity Fig. 1. The Foolkit will enable residents and the local community to facilitate a community worksnop, to develop a vision for their space and to identify volunteer opportunities for their space and City officers, to enable collaboration between community and City open tional tivities.

Minor expenditure is expected and can be accommodated via the existing Volunteer Support program. If successful, this budget will continue to be used to support the Embrace a Space program in the future. Infrastructure requeses received through the program will be listed for consideration in the assessment of outure priorities for reserve upgrades.

Council is being requested to acknowledge the Embrace A Space program and support the implementation of the Embrace A Space Community Toolkit.

Councillor Tahlia Jon's moved the report recommendation which was seconded by Councillor Lynn Rodgers. Discussion consumed in relation to the history of development of the program, coordination and liaison established with CityParks and pilot programs undertaken. Elected Members acknowledged the success and benefits the program has the potential to deliver to many areas across Mandurah.

MOTION: Tahlia Jones / Lynn Rodgers

That Council acknowledges the Embrace a Space Program and supports the implementation of the Embrace a Space Community Toolkit and Activity Plan.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0

### MOTIONS OF WHICH NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN [AGENDA ITEM 20]

## G.30/4/19 HON COUNCILLOR RIEBELING: ACTIVATION OF LIGHT INDUSTRIAL AREAS

The reason for this Motion is over the last few years Council has seen a number of businesses close in light industrial areas, such as the old Bunnings site. Initiatives to see what support can be provided to assist in the regeneration of these areas, and the viability of the businesses that are operating in these localities, should be fully investigated.

Hon. Councillor Riebeling moved, Councillor Peter Rogers seconded the notice of motion submitted. Elected Members discussed the cyclic and structural struggles across Western Australia and Australia at present along with areas and organisations that should be consulted for inclusion in any future report on this matter.

MOTION:

F Riebeling / Peter Rogers

That Council requests officers to present a report setting out information on the measures that can be taken to activate light industrial areas that are under pressure, including tools that can be used to enhance business in those areas and incentives that could be introduced.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0

## G.31/4/19 HON COUNCILLOR RIEBEL! G: N-H USE ROAD CONSTRUCTION WORKS

The reason for this Motion is to provide information that should be required in preparing this upcoming budget and future budgets

Hon Councillor Riebeling moved and a social impacted for both staff and small expense in the annual budget and also held a social impacted for both staff and small businesses associated with road construction. There was a duty to confirm that money was being spent well and was enabling best value to be achieved. Councillor Darcy seconded the motion.

MOTION:

F Rie, aling / M Darcy

That Council requests officers to present a report on the viability of maintaining the City's capacity to build roads in-house. This report should examine the social impact of any change to the structure, and capital costs (including when the requirement for significant capital injection will be required). There should also be a comparison with the private sector per kilometre.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0

## G.32/4/19 COUNCILLORS TAHLIA JONES AND DARCY: LOCALISED APPROACH TO OFF ROAD MOTOR BIKES

The reason for this Motion is a number of community members have contacted us with their concerns about the problem of off road motor bikes.

Councillor Tahlia Jones moved and Councillor Darcy seconded the motion with the inclusion of the words 'and motorised scooters' to point 2. Elected Members sought clarification as to off-road vehicle facilities within the District. The Manager Statutory Services advised there were no reserves in the City's control that could be utilised for such activity. Discussions have been undertaken in regard to utilisation of sites within Keralup however locally off-road vehicle use is limited.

MOTION: Tahlia Jones / M Darcy

#### That Council:

- 1. Request officers to review and advise the number of complaints received from the community relating to off-road motor bikes during the 2018/2019 financial year;
- 2. Request the City to investigate the development of a localised approach to target off road motor bikes and motorised scooters in known hot spots across Mandurah:
- 3. Request the City to develop an engagement plan to improve incident reporting to both the City of Mandurah Rangers and the Mandurah Police.
- 4. Request the City to develop a community 'too.'vi', giving people information on how they can help the City and the Police ack's are issue.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY: 12/0

NOTICE OF MOTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION AT THE FOLLOWING MEETING [AGENDA ITEM 21]

Nil.

LATE AND URGENT BUSI. 'ESS I' EMS [AGENDA ITEM 22]

Nil.

**CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS [AGENDA ITEM 23]** 

Nil.

**CLOSE OF MEETING [AGENDA ITEM 24]** 

There being no further business, the Mayor declared the meeting closed at 6.30pm.

CONFIRMED ...... (MAYOR)